Planning and Orders Committee

Minutes of the meeting held on 25 July 2018

PRESENT: Councillor Nicola Roberts (Chair)

Councillors John Griffith, Glyn Haynes, T LI Hughes MBE, K P Hughes, Vaughan Hughes, Eric Wyn Jones, Bryan Owen,

Dafydd Roberts and Robin Williams.

Councillor R A Dew – Portfolio Holder (Planning).

IN ATTENDANCE: Planning Development Manager (NJ),

Planning Manager (Major Consents) (SO) (for application 6.3),

Planning Built and Natural Environment Manager (JIW),

Senior Planning Officer (CR), Legal Services Manager (RJ), Committee Officer (MEH).

APOLOGIES: Councillor Richard Owain Jones.

ALSO PRESENT: Local Members: Councillors R Meirion Jones (application 7.2);

Bob Parry OBE FRAgS (application 12.1).

Councillors G O Jones and Alun Mummery.

1 APOLOGIES

As noted above.

2 DECLARATION OF INTEREST

Councillor K P Hughes declared a prejudicial interest in application 7.1 and left the meeting during discussion and voting thereon.

Councillor John Griffith declared a personal interest in application 7.1 but following legal advice he was able to take part during discussion and voting thereon.

Councillor Bryan Owen declared a prejudicial interest in application 12.2 and left the meeting during discussion and voting thereon.

The Planning Development Manager declared a personal interest in application 7.3 and left the meeting during discussion and determination of the application.

3 MINUTES

The minutes of the meeting held on 4 July, 2018 were confirmed as correct.

4 SITE VISITS

The minutes of the Planning Site Visits held on 18 July, 2018 were confirmed as correct.

5 PUBLIC SPEAKING

There were Public Speakers in respect of application 7.2.

6 APPLICATIONS THAT WILL BE DEFERRED

6.1 17C181C – Full application for the erection of a livestock shed, erection of a silage clamp, laying of hardstanding together with associated landscaping to include formation of a landscaping bund at Fferam Uchaf, Llansadwrn

The Planning Development Manager reported that it was considered necessary for members to view the proposal and its context prior to considering the application.

It was RESOLVED to visit the site in accordance with the Officer's recommendation for the reasons given.

6.2 19C232E/FR – Full application for demolition of the existing shop together with the erection of a hotel and a commercial unit (Class A3) in its place at 55 Market Street, Holyhead

The Planning Development Manager reported that it was considered necessary for members to view the proposal and its context prior to considering the application.

It was RESOLVED to visit the site in accordance with the Officer's recommendation for the reasons given.

6.3 38C310F/EIA/ECON – Site preparation and clearance works for development of the Wylfa Newydd Power Station comprising the following activities: site clearance (including vegetation clearance and management, removal of fencing, walls, gates, field boundaries, existing structures (including buildings), scrub, trees, and other above ground features); site establishment works (including installation of a new crossing of the existing Magnox Power Station access road, formalisation of existing vehicular crossing points across Cemlyn Road, formalisation of vehicular routing, installation of construction fencing around the perimeter of the site, establishment of laydown areas, material storage compounds, construction compounds and associated temporary office/welfare buildings, car parks, associated footpath link from between main site compound to the former Wylfa Sports and Social Club car park,

fuel store, security fencing, drainage and security features); ground improvement works (including establishment of a remediation processing compound and associated fencing storage of treated/processed material, establishment of associated access tracks, drainage, excavation and treatment of soils likely to be contaminated, and treatment and removal of invasive non-native species); diversion and/or closure of Cemlyn Road with controlled access to Ty Croes (Fisherman's Car Park); other associated works; and a scheme of restoration to return the site to an acceptable condition in the event the Wylfa Newydd Power Station development does not proceed at Wylfa Newydd, Cemaes

The Planning Manager (Major Consents) reported that it was considered necessary for members to view the proposal and its context prior to considering the application.

It was RESOLVED to visit the site in accordance with the Officer's recommendation for the reasons given.

6.4 39LPA1046/CC – Full application for the formation of a Park and Ride facility together with the construction of a new vehicular access and associated development at Four Crosses Public House, Menai Bridge

The Planning Development Manager reported that it was considered necessary for members to view the proposal and its context prior to considering the application.

It was RESOLVED to visit the site in accordance with the Officer's recommendation for the reasons given.

7 APPLICATIONS ARISING

7.1 34C304Z/1/ECON – Full application for the erection of six buildings, the change of use of field into a heavy plant training area together with the creation of a new car park at Coleg Menai, College Road, Llangefni

(Having declared an interest in this application, Councillor K P Hughes left the meeting during discussion and voting thereon.

Councillor John Griffith had declared a personal interest but following legal advice he took part during discussion and voting thereon).

The application was presented to the Planning and Orders Committee as the application is a major planning application and the development forms part of the long term masterplan for the campus and town of Llangefni. At the meeting of the Planning and Orders Committee held on 4th July, 2018 it was resolved to visit the site in accordance with the Officer's recommendation. The site was subsequently visited on the 18th July, 2018.

The Planning Development Manager reported that the proposed development comprises of 6 buildings consisting of (1) General construction operative

equipment store (2) Scaffolding store (3) Casement and shuttering formwork joinery training centre and general operative training building (5) Scaffold training building and (6) Heavy plant store. Additionally there will be a change of use of agricultural land to a heavy plant training area along with the creation of a car park for 41 vehicles and associated landscaping. The application is a full application for the creation of a Centre for Infrastructure Skills Training and will deliver skills required associated with the construction stages of major infrastructure projects. She noted that the development will require 20 newly created posts and the centre will have a capacity to train between 800 and 1,000 individuals annually.

The Planning Development Manager further reported that Natural Resources Wales has requested more information as regard to bat mitigation details and representations are still awaited from the Drainage Section and the Welsh Governments Highways Agency as regard to the application. She noted that representations have been received by Welsh Water, Gwynedd Archaeological Planning Services (GAPS), Highways Authority and the Welsh Language Officer who are satisfied with the development.

Councillor John Griffith questioned as regard to the level of noise nuisance to neighbouring dwellings from heavy machinery during training programmes of students. He noted that the Officer's report stipulates that there will be no adverse effect on neighbouring properties. He further said that there has been no reference within the report to the 153 properties and hotel which has recently been approved as part of the developments at Coleg Menai. The Planning Development Manager responded that a previous outline application was approved for the erection of buildings for heavy plant training was nearer to the properties. She noted that the application has been amended and buildings are now further away from the properties. Councillor Griffith sought clarification as to whether a condition as regard to noise levels can be attached to any approval of the application as to the movements of heavy machinery on the site. The Planning Development Manager responded that no noise levels conditions have been attached to the application but condition (05), as noted within the Officer's report, stipulates that heavy plant using the training area shall operate on site only between the hours of 9.00 a.m., and 5 p.m., and that no plant shall operate at weekends nor Bank Holidays.

Councillor T LI Hughes MBE proposed that the application be approved and Councillor Bryan Owen seconded the proposal.

It was RESOLVED to approve the application in accordance with the Officer's recommendation subject to the conditions contained within the written report and that the required response received from the statutory consultees is acceptable.

7.2 39C18C/2/VAR – Application under Section 73 for the variation of condition (09) of planning permission reference 39C18H/DA (erection of 21 dwellings) so as to amend the external appearance at Plot 10, Ty Mawr, Menai Bridge

The application was presented to the Planning and Orders Committee at the request of a Local Member. At the meeting of the Planning and Orders Committee held on 4th July, 2018 it was resolved to visit the site in accordance with the Officer's recommendation. The site was subsequently visited on the 18th July, 2018.

Mr Ken Hughes (against the proposal) said he was representing himself and his neighbour Mr Dyfrig Williams who both live in neighbouring properties to this development. He noted that he and Mr Williams have no opposition to the development in respect of the design nor its size but they have concerns as to the height of this proposal and where the finished floor level should be. He noted that the new dwelling will have a roof construction which is hipped on four sides sloping up towards a narrow ridge with a mass of slates facing neighbouring properties and especially in front of 6 Ty Mawr Estate. Mr Hughes considered that the level of the floor could be reduced and would not have a detrimental effect on the amenities of the property when completed.

Members ascertained as to the reason why they considered that the height of the roof of the proposed dwelling needs to be reduced and whether it impedes on the views of neighbouring properties. Mr Hughes responded that the height of the proposed dwelling that the developer has now submitted is twice the height of the previously approved dwelling. The occupier of 6 Ty Mawr Estate will be overlooking a mass of slate roofs and reducing the height of the roof of the proposed dwelling would greatly alleviate the effect on the neighbouring dwelling.

Mr Jamie Bradshaw (for the proposal) said that the application is for a change to the approved design on plot 10 of the Ty Mawr development. The new design proposes a 4 bed bungalow with a single bedroom in the roof space of the building. He noted the approved design is for a single storey bungalow, but it is important to note that the height of the ground floor of that property is considerably higher than what is now proposed. The previously approved application is 34 metres higher than the amended plans which is to be 31.82 metres. The proposal is for a hipped roof on all four sides which lead up to a single narrow ridge. In contrast, the approved design has a long central ridge and gable ends that face onto neighbouring properties. As such the proposal has a lesser impact upon neighbours than the approved design, which is a key argument in its favour. He further said that it must also be noted that the approved design is a key fall-back position as it could be built if this application is refused. Mr Bradshaw said that the proposed development is a modern design which would be an improvement from the approved dated design, and which would reflect the other recently built properties seen around this site on this part of the estate in terms of its appearance and scale, and also the size of the building on the plot. The Officers have reached the same conclusions when assessing the proposal.

Councillor Dafydd Roberts ascertained whether there was any technical reason as to why the level of the floor of the proposed property was not possible. Mr Bradshaw responded that it would require extensive excavation and would be

costly. He said that the height of this proposed development has been reduced in comparison to the previously approved application.

The Planning Development Manager reported the application has been made to change the design of the previously approved dwelling. The area is identified within the Joint Local Development Plan where it is expected that housing developments take place. The roof of the proposed dwelling has now been significantly reduced in comparison to the previously approved dwelling and would reduce the impact on the neighbouring dwellings. The recommendation is of approval of the application.

Councillor R Meirion Jones, a Local Member said that the development of the Ty Mawr Estate has been undertaken for a number of years and the occupants of the dwellings of the estate were informed of the layout and size of the properties on the estate. Recently, owners of plots on the estate are now submitting plans to extend the footprint of the dwellings. He referred to Plot 8 on the estate and the footprint of this dwelling has filled the whole plot and has a mass slate roof that overlooks neighbouring properties. Councillor Jones said that he did not agree with the developer of Plot 10 that the proposed dwelling would have a lesser impact on neighbouring properties to the previously approved design as the footprint of the dwelling has been increased and would have a greater impact.

Councillor Robin Williams expressed that he agreed with his fellow Local Member, Councillor R Meirion Jones that the footprint of dwellings of recently approved properties is much larger on this estate. The Planning Development Manager responded that individual planning approval has been afforded within the estate, on their own merits, after the original permission for the development of the Ty Mawr Estate. She said that the mass of the roof of the previously approved dwelling at Plot 10 has been reduced and a hipped roof is proposed as regard to the proposed design.

The Chair, Councillor Nicola Roberts ascertained as to the distance of the proposed dwelling to its neighbouring property. The Planning Development Manager responded that the distance between the properties is 9.5m which is considered acceptable. Councillor Robin Williams referred to the Supplementary Planning Guidance, Note 8 which stipulates that the distance between properties should be 10.5m at the least and distances as regard to site level needs to be increase of a further distance of 3m; therefore the distance between these properties should be 13.5m. The Planning Development Manger accepted that the guidelines for the distance between the boundaries should be 10.5m and the SPG refers that distance needs to be increased when the design has ground floor bedrooms. She said that Plot 10 is lower than the neighbouring properties and the distances between boundaries of neighbouring properties can be decreased as there will be no overlooking from the proposed dwelling.

Councillor Vaughan Hughes said that during the site visit it was obvious that there has been insufficient control on planning development on this estate due to extension to the size and design of recent dwellings. He considered that the amenities of residents are being affected and agreed with the objector to this application that the floor level of the dwelling should be decreased.

Councillor K P Hughes proposed that the application be approved and Councillor John Griffith seconded the proposal.

Councillor Vaughan Hughes abstained from voting.

It was RESOLVED to approve the application in accordance with the Officer's recommendation subject to the conditions contained within the written report.

7.3 41LPA1041/FR/TR/CC – Full application for the change of use of agricultural land for use as a temporary stopping place (10 spaces) for Gypsies and Travellers, formation of a new vehicular access, the formation of a new pedestrian access and pavement together with associated development on land east of Star Crossroads, Star

(Having declared an interest in this application, the Planning Development Manager withdrew from the meeting during consideration and determination of the item).

The application was presented to the Planning and Orders Committee as the application has been submitted by the Council.

Councillor Robin Williams proposed that following receipt of the flooding impact report he considered that the site needs to be visited to ascertain if the site is suitable for a temporary stopping place for Gypsies and Travellers. Councillor Vaughan Hughes seconded the proposal.

It was RESOLVED to visit the site in accordance with the Local Member's request for the reasons given.

8 ECONOMIC APPLICATIONS

None considered by this meeting of the Planning and Orders Committee.

9 AFFORDABLE HOUSING APPLICATIONS

None considered by this meeting of the Planning and Orders Committee.

10 DEPARTURE APPLICATIONS

10.1 14C245B/VAR – Application under Section 73 for the variation of conditions (04) (passing bays) and (07) (approved plans) of planning permission reference 14C245A (conversion of outbuilding into a dwelling) so as to amend the approved design and reduce the number of passing bays from two to one together with the removal of condition (06) (photographic record) on land north of Bodwrog, Tyn Lon

The application is presented to the Planning and Orders Committee as the proposal is contrary to policies of the Joint Local Development Plan where the Local Planning Authority is minded to recommend a split decision, approving part of the application and refusing the other part.

The Planning Development Manager reported that the site is located within the open countryside setting. The principle of developing the site has already been established where permission was granted. She noted that proposal before the Committee is to amend Condition (07) for an extension to accommodate a first floor bedroom which would equate to a change to the design of the building and is contrary to policy TAI 7 of the Joint Local Development Plan which requires conversions to retain the building's character and reduce the impact of any new works.

The Officer referred to the proposal for the amendments to Condition (04) relating to the amendment proposed to reduce the requirement of 2 passing bays to 1. The Highways Authority has confirmed that this is acceptable and are satisfied for the condition to be varied accordingly.

She further referred that the applicant has requested that Condition (06) (Photographic Record) be deleted from the approved application but it is considered that the condition should be discharged rather than removed. Photographic evidence was provided with the planning application and Gwynedd Archaeological Planning Service have confirmed that they are satisfied with the photographic evidence provided with the application.

Councillor Eric Jones proposed that the variation of Condition (04) (passing bays) and the deletion of Condition (06) (Photographic Record) be approved and Councillor Robin Williams seconded the proposal.

Councillor Eric Jones proposed to refuse the variation of Condition (07) (approved plans) in accordance with the Officer's recommendation. Councillor Robin Williams seconded the proposal.

It was RESOLVED:-

- to approve the application in respect of the variation of condition (04) (passing bays) and the deletion of condition (06) (Photographic Record) in accordance with the Officer's recommendation subject to the conditions contained within the written report.
- to refuse the variation of condition (07) (approved plans) in accordance with the Officer's recommendation.
- 10.2 42C135F/VAR Application under Section 73 for the variation of condition (11) (approved plans) of planning permission reference 42C135C (Hybrid application: Outline application with full details of access, appearance, landscaping, layout and scale for the erection of stable block. Full application for 4 holiday pods and car parking) so as to amend the design of the pods and the car parking layout and

discharge condition (09) (landscaping scheme) at Coch y Meiri, Wern y Wylan, Llanddona

The application is presented to the Planning and Orders Committee as the proposal is contrary to policies of the Joint Local Development Plan in which the Local Planning Authority is minded to approve.

The Planning Development Manager reported the application is for the variation of conditions to change the design of the 4 holiday pods on the site and car parking layout. The application is contrary to Policy TWR3 of the Joint Local Development Plan but there is a fall-back position that the application site has an extant planning permission since 2017. She outlined the history of the previous planning permission in 2017 and noted that the original application was for 6 holiday pods which was reduced to 4 and the removal of the equestrian centre element of the application. As part of the application there is was an intention to remove 3 static caravan which were used for holiday use from the site. The application is to raise the height of the holiday pods by 60cm and changes to the openings of the pods and landscaping to mitigate the effect of the development.

She further said that the application site is on the boundary of both the Seiriol and Lligwy Wards and an objection had been received by a Local Member of the Seiriol Ward to the application as regard to the amendment of the Condition as regard to landscaping of the site but she noted that the applicant is submitting full plans rather than removing the condition. She noted that the Local Member has expressed that the Llanddona Community Council had submitted concerns as the site is within an AONB area together with the fact that the site is near the coastal path. The Planning Development Manager further said that the Community Council has expressed concerns as regard to the previous application in respect of the condition in respect of the width of the road to the site. She noted that the Community Council is now satisfied with the details of the full application as the Highways Authority have no objection to the proposal. Passing-bay details have been submitted as part of the application and the Highways Authority are satisfied with the proposal. Amendments will need to be made to Condition 8 to assure that the passingbays are completed before any occupancy of the holiday pods. She further said that drainage details have been received but response is awaited by Natural Resources Wales as a statutory consultee; the Drainage Section of the Authority is satisfied with the details.

The Planning Development Manager reported that the public consultation period does not come to an end until the 25 July, 2018 and requested that the Officer's be afforded power to act following the public consultation period if no representations have been received.

Councillor K P Hughes proposed that the application be approved and Councillor Eric W Jones seconded the proposal.

It was RESOLVED :-

- to approve the application and to grant the Officer's power to act following the statutory public consultation period coming to an end;
- that an amendment be made to Condition 8 as regard to the requirement for passing bays to be completed before any occupancy of the holiday pods.

11 DEVELOPMENT PROPOSALS SUBMITTED BY COUNCILLORS AND OFFICERS

11.1 49C175C – Full application for conversion of the existing double garage into a self-contained annexe at Bryn y Môr, Valley

To note that the application has been withdrawn.

12 REMAINDER OF APPLICATIONS

12.1 23C301C – Full application for conversion of outbuilding into an annexe as carers accommodation at Pen y Garreg, Talwrn

The application was presented to the Planning and Orders Committee at the request of a local member.

Councillor Bob Parry OBE, a Local Member said that the proposal for an annexe is for the use as a carer's accommodation to assist the elderly residents of Pen y Garreg, Talwrn. He requested that the site be visited as regard to land use and any effects on neighbouring properties.

Councillor Eric W Jones proposed that the site be visited and Councillor John Griffith seconded the proposal.

It was RESOLVED to visit the site in accordance with the Local Member's request for the reasons given.

12.2 36C193P/ENF – Full application for the retention of two storage containers together with the siting of 10 additional storage containers on land at Cefn Uchaf, Rhostrehwfa

(Having declared an interest in this application, Councillor Bryan Owen left the meeting during discussion and voting thereon).

The application was presented to the Planning and Orders Committee at the request of a local member.

Councillor Dafydd Roberts proposed that the site should be visited to assess the effects on the amenities of neighbouring properties. Councillor Robin Williams seconded the proposal.

It was RESOLVED to visit the site in accordance with the Local Member's request for the reasons given.

12.3 45LPA1029D/CC/DIS – Application to discharge condition (10) (operational lighting) of planning permission 45LPA1029A/CC/ECON at Ysgol Santes Dwynwen, New School Site, Lon Twnti, Newborough

The application was presented to the Planning and Orders Committee as the land is owned by the Council.

The Planning Development Manager reported that the application is to discharge condition (10) (operational lighting) of previously approved application at Ysgol Santes Dwynwen, Newborough. Full details of the external lighting have now been submitted for consideration under this application which entails 14 lighting columns together with lighting on the school building. The recommendation is of approval of the application but the Ecological Advisor of the Council has requested further bat mitigation details as regards the proposal.

Councillor Robin Williams proposed that the application be approved and Councillor John Griffith seconded the proposal.

It was RESOLVED to approve the application in accordance with the Officer's recommendation subject to the conditions contained within the written report and receipt of a satisfactory bat mitigation details.

13 OTHER MATTERS

None considered by this meeting of the Planning and Orders Committee.

COUNCILLOR NICOLA ROBERTS
CHAIR